
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

MMaarrcchh  77,,  22002222  
  



 
March 3, 2022  6:45:31 PM 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MARCH 7, 2022 

COMMISSIONERS’ CONFERENCE ROOM  
& LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Johnson 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes for February 7, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Session Minutes 
 for January 3, 2022 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-006 Authorizing the Increase in the Federal Procurement Policy  

Micro-Purchase Threshold 
d) Personnel Policy Amendment:  Holiday Pay Policy 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3   6:20 PM  Employee of the Quarter, Chair Johnson 
    
Item 4    6:30 PM Public Hearing:  Sale of Veteran’s Field, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 5 6:40 PM Resolution 2022-007 Sale of Veteran’s Field, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 6 6:50 PM  Martin County Chamber of Commerce Presentation, Ms. Rebecca Harned, Director, 
  MC Chamber of Commerce 
 
Item 7 7:10 PM Washington County Schools (WCS) Discussion, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA, Dr. Linda Carr, 

WCS Superintendent, Staff from SFLA Architects, DPI Staff 
  
Item 8 8:10 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon,  
   Finance Officer 
  
Item 9 8:20 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 

 ARPA/CIP Projects Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 Relocation of Elections Office to Roper Annex Building, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

   
Item 10 8:30 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 

privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
      

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 
 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for February 7, 2022 & Closed Session Minutes for 
January 3, 2022 
See attachment. *Note:  The minutes will be at the end of the of the Agenda Package 
document. 

 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 

See attachment. 
 

c) Resolution 2022-006 Authorizing the Increase in the Federal Procurement Policy Micro-
Purchase Threshold 
 

d) Personnel Policy Amendment:  Holiday Pay Policy 
 

 
 









Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

PROCLAMATION 2022-006 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INCREASE IN THE FEDERAL 
PROCUREMENT POLICY MICRO-PURCHASE THRESHOLD 

 
WHEREAS, from time to time, the County of Washington, North Carolina (the “County”) 

purchases goods and services using federal funding subject to the procurement standards in 2 
C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart D;  
 

WHEREAS, the County’s procurement of such goods and services is subject to certain 
federal procurement laws including without limitation those commonly known and referred to as 
“Uniform Guidance”, as well as any specific local policies related to federal procurement adopted 
and/or amended from time to time, including without limitation the County’s Uniform Guidance 
Conflicts of Interest Policy adopted November 5th, 2018;  
 

WHEREAS, the County is a non-Federal entity under the definition set forth in 2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.1; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(ii), a non-Federal entity may award micro-

purchases without soliciting competitive price or rate quotations if the non-Federal entity 
considers the price to be reasonable based on research, experience, purchase history or other 
information and documents that the non-Federal entity files accordingly;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(iii), a non-Federal entity is responsible for 
determining and documenting an appropriate micro-purchase threshold based on internal 
controls, an evaluation of risk, and its documented procurement procedures;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)(1)(iv), a non-Federal entity may self-certify 
on an annual basis a micro-purchase threshold not to exceed $50,000 and maintain 
documentation to be made available to a Federal awarding agency and auditors in accordance 
with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334;  
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)(1)(iv), such self-certification must include 
(1) a justification for the threshold, (2) a clear identification of the threshold, and (3) supporting 
documentation, which, for public institutions, may be a higher threshold consistent with State 
law;  
 

WHEREAS, G.S.143-129(a) and G.S. 143-131(a) require the County to conduct a 
competitive bidding process for the purchase of (1) apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment 
where the cost of such purchase is equal to or greater than $30,000, and (2) construction or 
repair work where the cost of such purchase is greater than or equal to $30,000;  
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina law does not require a unit of local government to 
competitively bid for purchase of services other than services subject to the qualifications-based 
selection process set forth in Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes 
(the “Mini-Brooks Act”);  
 

WHEREAS, G.S.143-64.32 permits units of local government to exercise, in writing, an 
exemption to the qualifications-based selection process for services subject to the Mini-Brooks 
Act for particular projects where the aggregate cost of such services does not exceed $50,000; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(iv), the Washington County Board of 
Commissioners now desires to adopt higher micro-purchase thresholds than those identified in 
48 C.F.R. § 2.101;  
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS:  

 
1. The County has qualified as a low-risk auditee in accordance with the criteria set forth in 

2 C.F.R. § 200.520. Therefore, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)(1)(iv)(A) and 
the applicable provisions of North Carolina law, the County hereby self-certifies the 
following micro-purchase thresholds:  
 

a. $30,000, for the purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment;  
 

b. $30,000, for the purchase of construction or repair work;  
 

c. $50,000, for the purchase of services not subject to competitive bidding under 
North Carolina law; and  
 

d. $50,000, for the purchase of services subject to the qualifications-based selection 
process in the Mini-Brooks Act, G.S. 143-64.31; provided that such threshold shall 
apply to a contract only if the County has exercised an exemption to the Mini-
Brooks Act, in writing, for a particular project pursuant to G.S. 143-64.32. The 
Board of Commissioners hereby delegates authority to grant such exemptions to 
the County Manager. If the exemption is not authorized, the micro-purchase 
threshold shall be $0;  
 

  



Page 3 of 3 
 

2.  The self-certification made herein shall be effective as of the date hereof and shall be 
applicable until March 7th, 2023, but shall not be applicable to Federal financial 
assistance awards issued prior to November 12, 2020, including financial assistance 
awards issued prior to that date under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Support (CARES) Act of 2020 (Pub. L. 116-136);  

 
3. In the event that the County receives funding from a federal grantor agency that adopts 

a threshold more restrictive than those contained herein, the County shall comply with 
the more restrictive threshold when expending such funds;  
 

4. The County shall maintain documentation to be made available to a Federal awarding 
agency, any pass-through entity, and auditors in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334; 
and 

 
5. The County Manager is hereby authorized to revise, if necessary, the Federal Purchasing 

Policy of the County to reflect the increased micro-purchase thresholds specified herein, 
and to take all such actions, individually and collectively, to carry into effect the purpose 
and intent of the foregoing resolution.  
 
Adopted this 7th day of March 2022. 

 

 
 
 

Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 

ATTEST:    

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC  
Clerk to the Board 

 

 



Washington County Resolution 2022-008  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-008 
To Amend the Washington County Personnel Policy 

Article VI: Leave; Section 1 (Bereavement) & Section 2 (Holidays) 
 

WHEREAS, the County Manager recently recommended that certain revisions be made by 
amendment to the current Washington County Personnel Policy in order to more clearly address and 
guide employees and administrative staff in uniformly and equitably interpreting and implementing the 
terms and conditions of that policy under certain circumstances; and 

 
WHEREAS, the revisions proposed by the County Manager in this resolution are intended to 

clarify:  
i.) that bereavement leave should be requested within ten (10) days of an eligible loss of an 

immediate family member, and 
 

ii.) that Juneteenth should be included in the list of other permanently recognized county 
holidays contained in Section 2 of the personnel policy, and  
 

iii.) that we remove obsolete and confusing references to “regular part time employees”, and 
 
iv.) that the outdated and administratively complicated and burdensome practice of certain 

departments using holiday bonus time off in lieu of paying employees who work on a 
holiday at a higher rate should be abolished, and  

 
v.) that the personnel policy should be updated to clearly specify that holiday pay practices 

for all continuously staffed 24/7 shift departments including EMS/Transport, Detention, 
and 911/Communications Departments should be uniformly aligned with and follow the 
same holiday pay policies as those that have historically applied to the Sheriff’s 
Department. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-008  Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make such amendments to certain existing policy sections as 
more particularly described and shown below using strikethrough to depict deletions, and underlining to 
depict insertions to be made thereto as part of this amendment.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
WASHINGTON COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That Article VI: Leaves; Section 1: Bereavement Leave is hereby amended as follows: 

 
Section 1: Bereavement Leave 
Any regular full-time or regular part-time employee of Washington County who has a member of his or 
her immediate family die shall receive three days off with pay as bereavement leave to arrange and/or 
attend funeral activities.  
 
“Immediate family” shall be defined as spouse, parent, guardian, children, sister, brother, grandparent, 
grandchildren plus the various combinations of half, step, in-law and adopted relationships that can be 
derived from those named.  
 
If additional time is necessary, it shall be taken as vacation or unpaid leave if vacation has been exhausted 
with advance authorization by the appropriate Department Head and/or County Manager’s office.   
 
The employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor upon making the determination to take time off 
from work for bereavement purposes as early as possible, but not later than ten (10) days from the date of 
the immediate family members death.   
 
Employees who fail to return to work on the date specified to the Department Head without receiving an 
extension are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

 
2. That Article VI: Leaves; Section 2: Holidays is hereby amended as follows: 

Section 2: Holidays 
 
Washington County shall celebrate the following holidays off with pay for regular full-time and regular 
part-time employees as indicated each year in the North Carolina Holiday Schedule: 
 
New Year’s Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday 
Good Friday 
Memorial Day 
Juneteenth 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veterans Day 
Thanksgiving (2 days including Thanksgiving Day and day after) 
Christmas (2 or 3 workdays including Christmas Day) 
 
At the beginning of each year, a holiday schedule for the year will be provided to all employees.  
Washington County allows for 11-12-13 holidays plus a floating holiday. 
 
In the event a holiday other than a floating holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be 
deemed to be the legal holiday.  In the event a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be 
deemed to be the legal holiday.   
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-008  Page 3 of 3 
 

The Landfill holiday schedule may differ from the County holiday schedule and will be posted each year. 
 

If any holiday mentioned above, with the exception of the floating holiday, falls on an employee’s 
regularly scheduled day off, the employee shall be granted another day off during the month in which the 
holiday was celebrated, whenever possible.  If this is not possible, the employee shall receive regular pay 
for the holiday rather than equivalent time off. 
 
Employees required to work on any designated holiday shall receive holiday bonus time off equivalent to 
the employee’s regular scheduled workday not to exceed 8 hours. The holiday bonus time off must be 
used within 60 calendar days of the date earned or the bonus time off is forfeited. If it is not possible 
within the department schedule for an employee to use the holiday bonus time off within this time period, 
the employee may be paid at the overtime rate in addition to the regular pay for the holiday with the 
approval of the Department Head. 

 
The holiday shall be considered the number of hours of an employee’s regular scheduled workday not to 
exceed 8 hours.  If an employee’s regular shift consists of more than 8 hours, the excess hours must be 
worked or be charged to the employee’s vacation balance. 
When a holiday falls within a period of paid leave, the holiday shall not be counted as a leave day in 
computing the amount of leave debited. 
 
An employee who is absent without leave on the day immediately preceding or following a holiday shall 
lose the holiday as well as pay for that day. 
 
Upon separation of employment, all unused holiday bonus time off will be forfeited.  
 
Sheriff’s Department (Including Communications (911) & Detention), and EMS/Transport 
Department: If a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off, the employee shall not be 
granted another day off and shall not be paid holiday pay.  Employees who are scheduled to work on a 
holiday will receive pay at the rate of time and a half.  

 
3. That except as specifically stated and amended herein, the Washington County Personnel Policy, as 

previously modified or amended from time to time, and currently in effect as of the date of this 
Resolution shall remain in full force and effect hereafter.  

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM AND/OR 

PUBLIC HEARING DURING  
COVID-19 AT THE MARCH 7, 2022 WASHINGTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-

19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions. The March 7, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting will take place at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC in the 
Commissioners’ Room and be live streamed on the County’s Facebook Page. Please 
review the following information carefully regarding alternative ways to access or 
participate in this, or any other public hearing, or any public comment portion of the 
regular meeting. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, or during any 

advertised public hearing portion of the meeting, you may attend the meeting in 
person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 116 Adams Street before 6:00 PM to 
sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least three feet of 
distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other applicable 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please come 
prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the meeting 
room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the meeting 
room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable regulations and 
guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which will be live 
streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a recording of the 
full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for at least 48 hours 
after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, March 7, 2022 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the March 
7, 2022 meeting. 

 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Board Chair 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Board Chair will announce the Employee of the Quarter and present them with a 
certificate.  They will also receive a check for $50.00.  Ms. Collier will take their picture 
(in the foyer) which will be printed and displayed on the wall in the foyer of the 
Administration Building the following day. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:      Public Hearing:  Sale of Veteran’s Field, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
There will be a Public Hearing on the Sale of Veteran’s Field.  Mr. Potter will lead the 
discussion. See Item 5. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Resolution 2022-007 Sale of Veteran’s Field, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA will speak to the Board on this agenda item.  Please see the 
background below and the attachments. 
 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to Resolution 2022-003 adopted by the Board at its 2/7/22 meeting, staff published a 
notice of the initial offer made by Pocosin Innovative Charter to purchase the 9.4+/- acre parcel 
of county owned property located at 508 North First St. in Creswell more commonly known as 
Veteran’s Field property for $48,264.34. 
 
No upset bids were received.  Pocosin Innovative Charter would like to proceed with purchasing 
the property. 
 
Pursuant to the approved potential terms of sale, and the previously advertised notice of upset 
bids, the Board reserved the right to hold a public hearing to receive information and comments 
from the prospective purchaser and/or general public about the intended use of the property by 
PICS before deciding whether to approve the sale. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  The Board should conduct the public hearing and discuss the 
information presented before deciding to: 
 

1. Accept the initial bid and approve the sale of the property to PICS by approving 
Resolution 2022-007 (subject to the terms of sale which include a restrictive covenant to 
use the property for recreational purposes, a right of first refusal reserved for the County 
in the event of future sale of the property by PICS, and a non-discrimination clause.) 
 

2. Continue the public hearing to a later meeting before taking further action. 
 

3. Reject the initial offer and bid at this time. 



Veteran's Field Property
Washington County Recreation Site

50 m

200 ft Scale 1:2400
Oct/05/2021



Attribute Value

NCPIN 7778412939

TAX_PIN 7778.18-41-2939

FeatId 7450

OwnerAdd1 120 ADAMS ST

OwnerAdd2

STATE NC

CITY PLYMOUTH

ZIP 27962

DB_PG 345/332

DeedDate 1994 MAR 28

OWNER_s WASHINGTON COUNTY

AreaAC 9.457

PropLoc 508 N FIRST ST

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


MAP 33A-1-7-1 I/O I

TWP/RURAL # 4-1790 DIST

ACCOUNT # 98011

PROPERTY LOCATION

ST DAVID RD/N FIRST ST

WASHINGTON COUNTY

EXEMPT

PO BOX 1007

PLYMOUTH, NC 27962

OWNER

BLDG CL

AREA BP

PER CF

WR SV

COMPUTER CONTROL FIELDS

PROPERTY CLASS  50 PARCEL #

NEW CONSTRUCTION 8626

PIN  7778.18-41-2939

HEARING CODE

NEIGHBORHOOD 004C    ROUTE 020
WASHINGTON COUNTY

Bldg. and Use

Story Height

Design/Style

Fd. or Bsmt.

Exterior Wall

Common Wall

Roof Type

Rf./Flr. Syst.

Int. Floor Finish

Int. Wall Finish

Heating System

Air Cond. System

Bth. Rm. Fixtures

Blt-Ins/Other

Add/Deduct Total
LAND SCHEDULE

Sty. Principal Building Add/Ded Sq Ft Area Price Schedule Value

Addition Building Code

PRIOR VALUES

LAND 33990

BUILDING 0

OUTBLDG 34700

TOTAL 68690
Frontage Figr. Avg. Depth Depth Factor Equiv. Frntg.

Listed V COST/MARKET/INCOME/CORRELATIVES

Date 2/23/2021 Grade Repl. Val.

Reviewed 55 Norm Cond Cost Conv.

Run Date 03/03/2022 Mkt. Cor. Repl. Val.

Reval Year 2021 Accr. Cond. Appr. Val.
ASSESSMENT CONTROL INFORMATION PERSPECTUS

Sale Price Date Year Built

Trans. Date 03/29/1994 No. 345-332   T Additions

Action Title Transfer Modernized

Comments Effective Year

MAP PLAT CAB 2 SLIDE 52A No. of Units

CRESWELL "VETERANS FIELD" No. of Rooms

ADD ANNOUNCING BOOTH TO OB5 Utilities

2006; PC252A Street

Topography Good

Income

Rate

Indicated Value

Land Value

Bldg Residual
DETACHED GARAGES, OUTBUILDINGS, ALL OTHER & MISC. ITEMS

Code Description Size Repl. Value Depreciation Appr. Value

FIXLF BLEACHRS 9ft      4500 70% 3150
FIXSF 4DUGOUTS 6ftX16ft      4000 70% 2800
FIXLF BACKSTPS 2ft      2000 70% 1400
FIXSF BATHRMS 10ftX27ft      3500 70% 2450
FIXSF CCESN/AA 16ftX24ft      9500 70% 6650
CLF4 FNCING4' 2300ft     20240 90% 18220

CLASS ZONE Frontage Ref. Classification Acres or Units Rate Sched. Value Cond. % Infl. % Mkt Cor % Land Value Market Value Item Use Value

HOMESITE HOMESITE

CLEARED 6.412 27990 CLEARED

WOODED 3.000 6000 WOODED

BUILDING

34700 OUTBLDG

TOB. ALLOTMENT

PEA. ALLOTMENT
TOTAL LAND VALUE 9.412 68690 TOTALS









Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-007 
Authorizing the Sale of the Veteran’s Field Recreational Property  

Located at 508 North First St., Creswell, NC 27928  
 
WHEREAS, Washington County owns certain real property commonly referred to as the Veteran’s 

Field property consisting of approximately 9.412+/- acres as more particularly described and shown as 
Tract 2 on a survey thereof entitled “Map of Tract Board of Education Creswell Elementary School” dated 
August 30th, 1993 by John E. Rea RLS, as recorded in Plat Cabinet 2, Slide 52A, in the Washington 
County Register of Deeds Office, and for additional reference purposes only having a Tax Parcel ID 
Number of 7778.18-41-2939; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County has historically used the Veteran’s Field property for the purpose of 
conducting recreational activities through its County Recreation Department in the eastern portion of 
Washington County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s use and maintenance of the property has substantially declined in recent 

years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County received an offer dated January 11, 2022 to purchase the property described 

above, in the amount of $48,264.34 submitted by Mrs. Stephanie Phelps, Board Chair and Mrs. Constance 
Davenport, Board Vice-Chair on behalf of Pocosin Innovative Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-269 permits the County after receiving an offer 

to purchase County owned property, to advertise the offer for upset bids, and subsequently to sell the 
property to the highest bidder or alternatively to reject all bids; and 

 
WHEREAS, Pocosin Innovative Charter has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on its offer; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 7th, 2022 the Board of Commissioners approved Resolution 2022-003 

authorizing the advertisement of this initial offer, and soliciting upset bids in accordance with the 
applicable statutes; and 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the initial offer and advertisement for upset bids was published in the Roanoke Beacon 

on February 2nd, 2022 and sought upset bids to be delivered to the Clerk to the Board by February 14th, 
2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, no upset bids were received by the Clerk to the Board.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 

COUNTY (the “Board”) HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. After careful consideration and review of the initial $48,264.34 offer made by Pocosin Innovative 

Charter to purchase the Veteran’s Field property, taking into account any public comments or 
information received, the assessed tax value of said property, the condition of improvements 
situated on it, and both the immediate and ongoing associated maintenance costs, the offer is 
considered lower than ideal, but reasonable under the applicable terms of the sale as advertised. 
 

2. Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute §160A-269 after advertising the initial offer made by 
Pocosin Innovative Charter, and receiving no upset bids, the initial $48,264.34 offer received is 
hereby accepted subject to the advertised terms of sale, and the sale of the property to Pocosin 
Innovative Charter upon such terms is hereby approved. 
 

3. The Board Chair, County Manager/County Attorney, County Finance Officer, and Clerk to the 
Board are hereby authorized to prepare, execute, and deliver any and all instruments deemed 
reasonably necessary to close upon and otherwise fully facilitate and finalize the approved sale of 
the Veteran’s Field property by Washington County to Pocosin Innovative Charter subject to the 
advertised terms of sale. 
 
 

 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Relevant Terms of Sale: 

 
a. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the property shall be conveyed by the County in its present 

AS-IS WHERE-IS condition, without any warranties or guarantees, as well as the legal status 
of the title to the property which shall be conveyed subject to any and all recorded restrictive 
covenants, easements, liens, notices, or any other matters of title recorded in the Washington 
County Register of Deeds Office or otherwise appearing in any publicly available records. 
 

b. The property may be conveyed subject to a restrictive covenant running with the land in 
perpetuity that the property must be used at all times solely for recreational/athletic purposes 
by a public body or non-profit entity which does not discriminate on the basis of any protected 
class recognized under applicable federal anti-discrimination law, including without limitation 
Title VII, and otherwise in general conformity with any and all applicable laws related thereto. 

 
c. The property may also be conveyed subject to a right of first refusal reserved by Washington 

County to repurchase the property in the event of any subsequent sale of said property. 
 

d. The buyer shall pay the full purchase price for the property in cash at the time of closing which 
shall take place within 30 days after the Board has approved the final high offer by subsequent 
Resolution after the public hearing described above.  Failure to close within 30 days of final 
approval by the Board for no fault or delay caused by the County shall result in the buyer’s 
forfeiture of the bid deposit unless otherwise agreed in writing between the parties.  

 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-007 
Authorizing the Sale of the Veteran’s Field Recreational Property  

Located at 508 North First St., Creswell, NC 27928  
 
WHEREAS, Washington County owns certain real property commonly referred to as the Veteran’s 

Field property consisting of approximately 9.412+/- acres as more particularly described and shown as 
Tract 2 on a survey thereof entitled “Map of Tract Board of Education Creswell Elementary School” dated 
August 30th, 1993 by John E. Rea RLS, as recorded in Plat Cabinet 2, Slide 52A, in the Washington 
County Register of Deeds Office, and for additional reference purposes only having a Tax Parcel ID 
Number of 7778.18-41-2939; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County has historically used the Veteran’s Field property for the purpose of 
conducting recreational activities through its County Recreation Department in the eastern portion of 
Washington County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s use and maintenance of the property has substantially declined in recent 

years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County received an offer dated January 11, 2022 to purchase the property described 

above, in the amount of $48,264.34 submitted by Mrs. Stephanie Phelps, Board Chair and Mrs. Constance 
Davenport, Board Vice-Chair on behalf of Pocosin Innovative Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-269 permits the County after receiving an offer 

to purchase County owned property, to advertise the offer for upset bids, and subsequently to sell the 
property to the highest bidder or alternatively to reject all bids; and 

 
WHEREAS, Pocosin Innovative Charter has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on its offer; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 7th, 2022 the Board of Commissioners approved Resolution 2022-003 

authorizing the advertisement of this initial offer, and soliciting upset bids in accordance with the 
applicable statutes; and 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR.,  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the initial offer and advertisement for upset bids was published in the Roanoke Beacon 

on February 2nd, 2022 and sought upset bids to be delivered to the Clerk to the Board by February 14th, 
2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, no upset bids were received by the Clerk to the Board.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 

COUNTY (the “Board”) HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. After careful consideration and review of the initial $48,264.34 offer made by Pocosin Innovative 

Charter to purchase the Veteran’s Field property, taking into account any public comments or 
information received, the assessed tax value of said property, the condition of improvements 
situated on it, and both the immediate and ongoing associated maintenance costs, the offer is 
considered lower than ideal, but reasonable under the applicable terms of the sale as advertised. 
 

2. Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute §160A-269 after advertising the initial offer made by 
Pocosin Innovative Charter, and receiving no upset bids, the initial $48,264.34 offer received is 
hereby accepted subject to the advertised terms of sale, and the sale of the property to Pocosin 
Innovative Charter upon such terms is hereby approved. 
 

3. The Board Chair, County Manager/County Attorney, County Finance Officer, and Clerk to the 
Board are hereby authorized to prepare, execute, and deliver any and all instruments deemed 
reasonably necessary to close upon and otherwise fully facilitate and finalize the approved sale of 
the Veteran’s Field property by Washington County to Pocosin Innovative Charter subject to the 
advertised terms of sale. 
 
 

 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
       Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2022-007  Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Relevant Terms of Sale: 

 
a. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the property shall be conveyed by the County in its present 

AS-IS WHERE-IS condition, without any warranties or guarantees, as well as the legal status 
of the title to the property which shall be conveyed subject to any and all recorded restrictive 
covenants, easements, liens, notices, or any other matters of title recorded in the Washington 
County Register of Deeds Office or otherwise appearing in any publicly available records. 
 

b. The property may be conveyed subject to a restrictive covenant running with the land in 
perpetuity that the property must be used at all times solely for recreational/athletic purposes 
by a public body or non-profit entity which does not discriminate on the basis of any protected 
class recognized under applicable federal anti-discrimination law, including without limitation 
Title VII, and otherwise in general conformity with any and all applicable laws related thereto. 

 
c. The property may also be conveyed subject to a right of first refusal reserved by Washington 

County to repurchase the property in the event of any subsequent sale of said property. 
 

d. The buyer shall pay the full purchase price for the property in cash at the time of closing which 
shall take place within 30 days after the Board has approved the final high offer by subsequent 
Resolution after the public hearing described above.  Failure to close within 30 days of final 
approval by the Board for no fault or delay caused by the County shall result in the buyer’s 
forfeiture of the bid deposit unless otherwise agreed in writing between the parties.  

 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Martin County Chamber of Commerce Presentation, Ms. Rebecca 

Harned, Director, Martin County Chamber of Commerce 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Harned will give a presentation on the MC Chamber of Commerce representing 
Washington County. 
 
See attachments. 
 
 
 
 



MARTIN COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
ALSO SERVING WASHINGTON COUNTY

 

 



Founded in 1949, the Martin County Chamber of

Commerce is a not-for-profit membership-based

organization that advocates for, and works with, our

member businesses. The primary reason that we exist is to

do what is necessary to keep Martin County’s businesses

healthy, thus ensuring economic, civic and cultural well-

being. We represent 250+ businesses and organizations of

all sizes throughout Martin and surrounding counties.

We are not part of local, state, or federal government,

though we do often partner with governments to

accomplish economic/community development. We do

not collect taxes. We are funded by membership dues as

well as non-dues items such as event revenue,

sponsorships, programs, and fundraisers.

ABOUT MARTIN
COUNTY
CHAMBER
AN INTRODUCTION



Washington County has been without an active Chamber of Commerce for several years. It is without

question the many benefits that have been missing from the communities surrounding Plymouth,

Roper and Creswell. We currently have been serving Washington County businesses and the

conversation to reach out to officially add your region to our service territory began in late 2021.

Through collaboration and participation from everyone, we can achieve positive results, both nurture

and create opportunities for business development, provide promotional support and stay engaged

in each of our communities. 

WHY WASHINGTON COUNTY?
POWER THROUGH PARTNERSHIPS



WHAT YOU'VE BEEN
ASKING...
WHAT'S IN IT FOR
US? (WASHINGTON
COUNTY) 
WHAT ARE WE
REALLY GETTING?

The Chamber of Commerce is a referral source for all
communities they serve and regularly promote their
member businesses and services. They add even more
of a boost by partnering with local media outlets to
assist with ad creation and increase visibility.

PROMOTIONAL SUPPORT

The Chamber of Commerce hosts many community
events and creates networking between members
through local initiatives, bringing together not only
businesses with clients, but schools, families,
healthcare, aids employers with recruitment and find
ways to bridge the service gaps within our rural areas.

EVENTS-COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Chamber of Commerce assists business owners
with education and assistance towards maintaining
their sustainability through grant assistance. We
many times will aid them in getting financial
assistance and letters of support when needed. 

ADVOCACY



HOW OUR LOCAL AGENCIES HELP

COUNTY

GOVERNMENT

The County, in support

of its local non-profit

agencies, contributes a

small percentage of the

Chamber's overall

operating budget to

assist with the programs

and services they

provide.

TOWN SUPPORT

Towns located within

and around our service

area join as members

of the Chamber and

contribute a small

grant from community

development funds

when avaiable.

TOURISM

As a partner with our

local tourism agencies,

we co-promote visitors

and revenue to our

service area through

events held during the

year. Tourism sponsors

through event grant

assistance. 

NON-PROFIT

Local churches and non-

profit agencies join as

members of the

Chamber at a reduced

rate so their services

may be promoted

within the community .



QUESTIONS?
CONTACT US

MAILING ADDRESS
132 W Main Street 
Williamston, NC 27892

EMAIL ADDRESS
director@martinncchamber.com

PHONE NUMBER
(252) 251-0260

**Coming Soon**
Washington County will have their own tab on our

agency website, information about Washington
County, all Washington County businesses will have

their own directory in addition to being added to
Martin County directory listing.



C
om

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
P

rim
ar

y 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e:
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ti
tle

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

M
ai

lin
g 

A
dd

re
ss

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

P
hy

si
ca

l A
dd

re
ss

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
C

ity
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 S

ta
te

: _
__

_ 
Zi

p:
__

__
__

__
_ 

P
ho

ne
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

 F
ax

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

E
m

ai
l: 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_C
at

eg
or

y 
(i.

e.
 re

st
au

ra
nt

, a
cc

ou
nt

in
g,

 e
tc

.):
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
W

eb
si

te
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

# 
of

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

   
  F

ul
l-T

im
e:

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

   
  P

ar
t-T

im
e:

 _
__

__
__

__
   

   
To

ta
l: 

__
__

__
__

__
 

To
ta

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t A

m
ou

nt
 (m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
du

es
): 

$_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
M

et
ho

d 
of

 P
ay

m
en

t: 
__

_C
he

ck
 E

nc
lo

se
d 

  _
__

C
re

di
t (

ca
ll 

in
)

 S
ig

na
tu

re
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

  

W
ou

ld
 y

ou
 li

ke
 to

 a
cc

ep
t

C
ha

m
be

r G
ift

 C
er

tif
ic

at
es

at
 y

ou
r b

us
in

es
s?

__
Y

es
__

N
o

 
admin@martinncchamber.com

 
132 West Main St.

Williamston, NC 27892

252-792-4131

Contact Us

Martin County
Where you have room to grow

Membership Application

Learn More!
www.martinncchamber.com

2022
Membership

Application & Investment

Also serving:



Why Choose Us
Our Mission 

Chamber Benefits

Grand Openings and Ribbon Cuttings
Listing in Chamber Directory
Listing on Chamber Website
Website Link from our page to yours
Business After Hours
Ad in the Chamber Weekly Email
Chamber Gift Certificate Program
Main Street Market Booth
Live Radio Spots - Chamber Chat

The Chamber refers a large number of referrals each
month, and the chamber refers members only. 

 
The Chamber lets businesses display business cards
and brochures in the office as a resource to visitors.

 
Small business worker compensation insurance is

available to members at group rates. 
 
 

Total Value of over $2,300 in services!

Chamber Events

Annual Business & Industry
Appreciation Dinner

 
Business After Hours

 
Annual Fundraisers and

Networking Events
 

Facts and Snacks Seminars

The Martin County Chamber of
Commerce is committed to helping
drive community growth by serving

as a gateway for businesses to
grow through partnerships and

networking that encourage
economic advancement all while
maintaining its rural character.

Investment

Commercial & Professional

Banks & Financial

Industrial

Non-Profit, Charitable
Organizations, & Civic Clubs

# of Employess
1-4
5-8
9-15
16-25
26-50
51+

# of Employess
1-10
11-20
21-30
31+

# of Employess
1-50
51-100
101-150
151+

# of Employess
1
2-4
5+

Investment
$175
$195
$305
$335
$420
$490

Investment
$20 per employee
$15 per employee
$10 per employee

$7.50 per employee

Investment
$460
$535
$615

Call for Investment

Investment
$120
$125

Call for Investment

Cost of additional business after first business joins is $125
Additional Representatives is $75 (realtors, brokers, etc.)

Basic Minimum $330 plus increments
Additional Representatives is $85 (realtors, brokers, etc.)

Chamber Investments can be paid
annually, semi-annually, or

quarterly. Investments can be paid
by MasterCard, Visa, or check

Individuals - $100

Direct Sales, Mobile, & 
Home Based Businesses

# of Employess
1
2-4
5+

Investment
$125
$150

Call for Investment





 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Washington County Schools (WCS) Discussion, Mr. Curtis Potter, 

CM/CA, Ms. Linda Carr, WCS Superintendent, Staff from SFLA 
Architects, Staff from DPI 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

There will be a discussion on Washington County Schools (WCS) and how to move 
forward.   
 
See attachment. 



Comprehensive

School Facilities 

Modernization 

Options 

March 01, 2022 

Washington 

County Schools



Washington County Schools – District Map



Washington County Schools  2020 - 2021

• Washington County Population:  11,922

Heated              Student 

Square Feet         Population 

• Washington County High School                113,254                 242

• Pines Elementary School  (at WCMS) 89,965                 363

• Washington County Pre-K Center                  7,296                   39

• Washington County Middle School               76,003                 249

• Creswell Elementary School  (12 Pre-K) 46,636                 111    

• Washington County Early College                43,120                  75

Totals:           376,274              1,079



Washington County - Aerial



DPI School Facilities Report – Summary Considerations - Sept. 2021

● “…every school in the district has experienced reduced enrollment in 

recent years… as a result, the school district is maintaining significantly 

more facilities than are required for the student population.  This 

stretches the available resources and makes any evaluation of future 

facility use more complex.”

● “The geography of Washington County presents additional 

challenges… Consolidated facilities also create efficiency for resources 

such as transportation, administration, food service and maintenance 

functions.  School sports teams and other extracurricular activities can 

benefit from larger enrollments.  Additional efficiencies can be realized 

when maintaining fewer gymnasiums, and other suppport facilities.”

● “…nearly all the existing buildings in the district are experiencing 

problems with aging systems and equipment.  Mechanical and 

electrical systems, especially, are old and due for replacement or 

overhaul.  New facilities are likely the to be the best solution for the 

long term.”



DPI School Facilities Report – Options Outlined For Consideration

OPTION 1 

● Consolidate the middle and high school facilities into a single new school 

facility, centrally located in the county.  A new 6-12 or 7-12 facility could 

serve all secondary tiered students and would provide efficiencies.

Renovate PES at the west and renovate CES to the east as PK-5.

OPTION 2

● Replace the high school with a new facility designed to serve all grade 9-

12 students, centrally located in the county.  Adapt, repair, and renovate 

the existing eastern and western elementary schools into K-8 facilities, 

regionally serving those student populations.

OPTION 3

● Consolidate all school facilities in the county into a single new K-12 

campus, centrally located in the district.  This option could offer a highly 

efficient, all-new facility serving all WCS students.  This approach could 

represent a fresh start for improving facilities across the board.  A single 

new K-12 school could be planned and constructed prior to closure of 

any existing facilities.

OPTION 4

● Consolidate all school facilities in the county to two new K-12 campuses, 

one east, one west.  This approach most closely restores the 

community-based schools from the past.  Renovate Creswell campus for 

the eastern location and renovate PES for the western location.



Additional Options For Consideration

OPTION 5 

● Consolidate at the existing PES site a new PK-13 building serving all 

students except Creswell ES and Creswell MS students.  Renovate the 

existing CES campus as a PK-8 facility.

OPTION 6

● Consolidate all school facilities in the county into a single new K-12 

campus, centrally located in the district.  Renovate the existing CES 

campus to saccomodate the Early College High School.

OPTION 7

● Consolidate the middle and high school facilities into a single new school 

facility, centrally located in the county.  A new 6-12 or 7-12 facility could 

serve all secondary tiered students and would provide efficiencies.

Renovate PES at the west and renovate CES to the east as PK-5.     

Locate Early College at the CES campus.



Summary of Options



Washington County Schools – Option 3

New PK-12 

School ECH



Washington County Schools – Option 3



Washington County Schools – Option 3



Washington County Schools – Option 3



School Board Selects Option 3 for further study – 2/8/2022



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3

PHASE ONE

● Demolition of existing Pines Elementary School

● New PK-12 School for all students except Early College High

● Early College High moves back to existing Wash. Co. PK in Roper

PHASE TWO

● Minor renovations to ECH facility in Roper

● Athletic Facilities additions – Ballfields, Track and Field

● IT, Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

● Selective demolition of vacated properties



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3 - Site



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3

New PK-12 

School ECH



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3 – PH1



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3 – PH2



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3 - USDA



Washington County Schools – Phased Option 3



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 







































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from February 2022—see attachment 
 Statistics Reports from February 2022—see attachment 
 Register of Deeds Rollup Summary—see attachment 
 ARPA/CIP Projects—Mr. Potter will speak about these. 
 Relocation of Elections Office to Roper Annex Building—Mr. Potter will speak 

about this. 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
 March 7, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
The GIS/Mapping Department is doing fine. The following tasks were completed by the 
GIS/Mapping Department  

• Verified of property as recorded on deeds 
• Transfer of real property 
• Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 
• Assist the general public with maps and related needs 
• Managed correspondence via phone, email  
• Update property maps for the Tax Department  
• Update estate deeds  

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:   
All Full Time EMS and Transport Positions remain filled.  Currently there are no employees out 
due to COVID or COVID-Like illnesses.   We are accepting applications for part time positions.   
 
EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 
PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 28 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  
 
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
Director O’Neal will be attending the NC Association of EMS Administrators Winter 
Symposium in Wilmington the first week of March for training in Safety. This training will assist 
in keeping our employees and working locations safe, maintaining compliance with OSHA 
standards and is vital to reducing risk to our employees and the county.  Director O’Neal was 
also invited to sit on a panel with six other EMS Directors from across the state and the Office of 
EMS Chief.  We will be discussing North Carolina’s critical EMS workforce shortage and 
ongoing recruitment strategies.  We will also be speaking on these and other challenges we face 
(Supply Chain Issues, Mutual Aid in a time of limited resources, Diversity-Equity-Inclusion, 
New "opportunities" from Public Health Covid response - Immunization, Testing) and solutions 
we are implementing in our agency to address them.  
 
Thank you for your continued support of the Washington Tyrrell County EMS System.   
 



 
 

 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
All is well.  Our first tournament is the E.A.C. These are teams from the east.  On Mar 11-13, we 
will be playing in different places.  If anyone would like to go, let me know and I will get a ticket 
for them. God Bless and thank you for all you do.   
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
Jalynne Waters – Agriculture Agent 
  

● Between our in-person and virtual winter production meetings, Extension has served a 
total of 480 attendees, with 86 of those being Washington County growers. Some of our 
virtual attendees were from as far away as Avery County. These meetings included 
production and research updates for corn, soybeans, cotton, wheat, and pest management, 
along with pesticide credit trainings, auxin trainings, and a paraquat training. 

  
● I was able to coordinate a contract between Plymouth Primary Care and the 

Blackland Farm Managers Association. This contract benefits both parties – members 
of the BFMA will be able to receive required medical services such as respirator fit 
testing and DOT physicals (for CDL’s) at a discounted rate, and this brings in more 
business for Plymouth Primary Care. 
  

● Planning for planting season has started! I’m working on recruiting cooperators for 2022 
test plots. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
Rebecca Liverman - County Extension Director 
 
Face to Face Programming: 

● Teacher Enrichment day with Beth Stanley Jackson, 4-H 
Agent, for all WCS staff. The WCS WINS: Where 
Intentional Nurturing Starts enrichment day was held on 
Friday, February 4 at the Washington County Middle 
School.  Washington County Cooperative Extension was 
asked to provide classes related to Social Emotional 
Learning.  I taught Yoga to educators and support staff.  
Participants were able to walk away with the tools 
needed to continue their yoga journey.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

● We offered a Make-N-Take Series (day and night classes).  The first 
of the three part series was Homemade Cinnamon Rolls. 
Participants are able to make these at the office and bring them 
home to try with their family.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
● Our entire staff attended the Job Fair held at Washington County High School for middle 

and high school students. We had an interactive demonstration focusing on job skills 
needed in the work force. 



 
 

 

 
 
 
● Taught ServSafe Review and the Exam for the first 
time in two years! We had 12 people representing 
four counties and the school system, fine dining, 
and quick service establishments.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Networking Opportunities: 
 

We sat down with MTW District Health to discuss grant funding opportunities and 
collaborative partnerships for future programming. We hope to have this off the 
ground by later summer.  

 
● SunEnergy1 has approached us about educational partnerships at their Albemarle Beach 

location. Their plan is to have 300 sheep on the property as part of a grazing/ weed 
control program.  

 
 
Beth Stanley Jackson - 4-H Extension Agent  
 
WCS WINS: Washington County Schools: Where Intentional 
Nurturing Starts 
The Cooperative Extension Office was asked to provide 
programming.  I assisted Rebecca Liverman in teaching the Yoga and 
Mindfulness class, but I also arranged for Mary Morris, 
Cooperative Extension Director for Chowan County, to teach 
participants about the natural goodness of honey.  Participants 
learned the health benefits of honey, but also the science and 
mental health benefits of beekeeping.  Each participant also 
received a jar of local honey courtesy of the 4-H Program.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:rdliverm@ncsu.edu


 
 

 

4-H Livestock Show  
 
Our 64th Annual 4-H Livestock Show and Sale is set for Wednesday, May 4 and we are 
couldn’t be more excited! We have twenty-two youth exhibitors planning to show heifers, hogs, 
goats, and lambs.  The youth are currently working very hard behind the scenes on these projects 
and I hope you will plan to join us on May 4th as they show off their hard work.  Be sure to 
follow us on Facebook as I post their progress!  

@WashingtonCountyNC4H 
 

East Regional Qualifying 4-H Horse Show 
 
As 4-H Agents, we are sometimes tasked with taking on District Roles. This year I am serving as 
the coordinator for the East Regional Qualifying 4-H Horse Show to be held April 29 - May 1 at 
the Bob Martin Center.  This show welcomes 4-H’ers from the Northeast and Southeast Districts.  
Our local club, the Horse Life 4-H Club, led by Kristy Christenberry, ranks top three for 
our district in the number of youth participating.  New for this year, we have added Adaptive 
Classes for handicapped riders.  If you are in the area that weekend, be sure to come out and 
support our riders!  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 
During this period the Veterans Service Officer assisted 2 veterans and 1 dependent: 

• Furnished forms required for a claim of PTSD to a Veteran 
• Submitted 1 claim for service injuries. 
• Advised one dependent on the necessary forms to request a second issue of medals and 

award of a deceased veteran. 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
No report submitted. (On bereavement leave.) 
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits issued  32                                     
Inspections                  40   (3 fire inspections – RDC group homes, nursing home) 
Plan reviews               6 
 
Community Rating System seminar via Zoom (15th) – information needed and action to be taken 
for continued ratings to obtain discounts on flood insurance premiums. 
   
E-mail correspondence to obtain direction on the public information session required for 
approval of new flood maps drawn by FEMA.  We have no local option to change the maps; 
only to provide the information to the public that they have given us.   I have not received the 
final document with instructions. 
 
Planning Board (17th) – presented initial discussion regarding Mobile Home Ordinance/  
Subdivision Ordinance updates; not ready for recommendation to the Commissioners; will 
review again at next meeting scheduled on March 17th. 
 
RISE online – Albemarle Regional Resilience Portfolio Projects Initiative – this was the second 
meeting of this particular group –  group is working to create a list of resiliency projects (with 
regard for flooding in underserved populations) for the regional Albemarle area, and then 
determine which ONE will be applied to a funding request.   Be on the lookout for information 
about night-time online meetings to engage more public input – that information is not available 
at this moment, but they are working on that schedule.  CRS has been hosting and holding this 
same conversation for years.  
 
Fire Marshal – visit to Lake Phelps VFD for presentation of Blue Cross Blue Shield grant with 
                         Insurance Commissioner Causey  
 

  Site visit to 112 E Main Street Creswell for capacity determination 
 



 
 

 

 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 

Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 
Solid Waste 
 
The landfill took in 35.17 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 0.22 Tons of Inert Debris, 
0.87 Tons of Scrap Metal,   39.82 Tons of Construction Debris and 10.86 tons of Scrap 
Tires this month. 
 
Water Department 
 
Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 13 (MG). The average daily usage was 
.383 MG. We served 2639 accounts, billing customers for 8.9 MG of water. 

 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
January 2022 
 

1. Work with Southern Software, Anna Johnson and Richard Livingston to revise Fire  



 
 

 

Districts on GIS maps to reflect Primary, 2nd and 3rd. 
2. Contact Edmunds to discuss Log4 vulnerability. 
3. Issue with computer that Arlo Norman uses for connection to Edmunds software.  

Refurbished another computer and setup for him to use.  
4. Work with Mary Moscato and VC3 on phone system. 
5. Troubleshoot issue with Register of Deeds logging into computers in the vault. 
6. Troubleshoot issue with faulty drive on Register of Deeds server. Replace. 
7. Update Omnixx per SBI on all computers that access DCI. 
8. Get refreshed quote for CAD workstations. Have Anna send to State 911 Board to  

determine amounts eligible for reimbursement. Once returned from State figure amounts 
that are eligible and amounts the County will need to pay. Have Anna enter requisition. 

9. Install Microsoft fix for Y2K22 Bug. 
10. Refresh quote for new County server. Enter requisition. 
11. Request quotes for computers at Airport and Sheriff Office. Place order. 
12. Work with SSG to determine cabling required to move Fingerprint machine in Sheriff’s  

Office. 
13. Discuss final updates for 911 Center with Anna. 
14. Attend Teams meeting with State 911 Board and Anna to discuss Expenditure/Revenue  

Report. Email info to Curtis and Missy. 
15. Attend training for Julie on email changes. 
16. Make a list of items remaining to be purchased and paid in FY21-22 for IT, 911 and other 

Departments. Email to Curtis and Missy. 
17. Meeting with Anna and Jennifer (SBFI) to discuss 911 furniture. Measure and send  

dimensions of elevator to SBFI to determine if it can be used for getting furniture to 2nd  
floor. 

18. Meet with Keith Phelps to determine court dates and what dates will be available for 
replacing furniture and installing/training for updated radios. Keith said no court due to  
Judge’s conference June 15-26, so attempting to coordinate remaining items in 911 during  
this time. 

19. Attend kick off meeting for 911 Motorola radios on January 7. 
20. Troubleshoot issue with switch in Finance. Switch bad. Order replacement. Rewire users so 

they can continue to work. Install new switch when delivered. 
21. Apply server Windows updates. 
22. Troubleshoot internet issue at Senior Center. 
23. Troubleshoot issue with printer in Jail. 
24. Troubleshoot issue with connection of Julie’s pc. 
25. Email Curtis, Missy, Mary, Lance and Anna concerning rack in Clerk of Court vault that 

has incoming internet connection equipment. Not currently on generator and needs to be.  
Determine how to connect to generator before snow. 

26. Update BaseCamp 911 folder with quotes, invoices and checks for equipment. 
27. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
28. Attend Departmental meeting. 
29. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
30. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
31. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
 



 
 

 

February 2022 
 

1. Put in request for additional phone extension in Sheriff’s Office. 
2. Review number of Solarwinds license and update documentation. 
3. Troubleshoot issue with connectivity on new computer in Sheriff’s Office. 
4. Meeting with Curtis to review IT items. 
5. Review and explain to Anna 911 Board Markup for CAD chairs. 
6. Install and program digital door lock for Judges Chamber. Document. 
7. Troubleshoot issue with Tax office Toshiba copier. 
8. Review Tax year end instructions with Sherri and update documentation. 
9. Assist Anna in getting quote for 911 headsets. 
10. Contact Barry with CopyPro and get additional information for Curtis. 
11. Work with Southern Software to update RMS, JMS, CAD and MDS software. Apply  

update to user computers. 
12. Troubleshoot issue with connectivity for EMS. 
13. Update Cost Allocation for Finance. 
14. Re-install OS on Tina Dunlow’s computer. 
15. Zoom meeting with MCNC to discuss connection to Farmville for new 911 radio system. 
16. Re-install Edmunds on recreation computer and check connection. 
17. New 911 CAD workstations installed by SSG. 
18. Work with Richard to get GIS folder shared to users that need access. 
19. Contact Mediacom to discuss County accounts. 
20. Re-install OS on Tax laptop. 
21. Discuss with Mary Moscato connections at WOW building in Roper. 
22. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
23. Attend Departmental meeting. 
24. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
25. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
26. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 3 runway lights. 
2. Fuel Farm:  Still working on cleaning fuel farm tanks with cleaning solution and pressure 

washer. Would like to put coat of aluminum paint to keep from rusting. 
3. Don’t have any update on having trees removed in RPZ approaches. 
4. I am still working on yearly service maintenance items for New Holland tractor and other 

equipment (changing oil, filters etc.) mowers etc. 
5. We had installed cable on east side of airport to keep out four wheelers, etc. from 

entering airport property (safety issues). Have not had any incursions at this time. 



 
 

 

6. Continue working on airport landscaping to reduce wear and tear on airport equipment.  
7. In the works to install credit card reader in terminal soon. 

 
Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Clean leaves and trim limbs around Courthouse, Courthouse parking lot, and Library. 
2. Installed light bulbs and ballasts at the Strader Bldg. 
3. Installed locks and keys on the gun box for the Detention Center. 
4. Replace keypad lock on Judges’ Chamber door on the second (2nd) floor 
5. Completed the siding at the Water Plant in Roper.  
6. Put ceiling tiles and bulbs in the Courtroom. 
7. Moved tables out of the Washington County BCCC Center to the Landfill.  
8. Installed bulbs in the Detention Center. 
9. Put tables together for the County Manager’s Office conference area. 
10. Clean, sweep, mop, dust, wash windows, empty trash, vacuum and disinfect county 

buildings.  
 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
  
No surplus at this time. 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 31 30 44 44 48 0 0 0 0 0 306 306
Male 41 37 19 19 35 32 35 218
Female 7 1 9 7 5 9 10 48
Male 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 2
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 15
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 3 3 4 4 3 3 23 23
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0US PRISON TRANSPORT 

266

2

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

SMCP

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

94%

1%0%0%0%0%5%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 172 149 160 155 1084
WC Transported 90 122 109 120 102 113 115 771
WC Refusals 39 43 45 52 47 47 40 313

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 3 2 0 4 13
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 87 95 84 73 553
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 7 5 12 6 74
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 3 5 6 4 39

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 53 48 44 44 372
TC Transported 43 48 42 38 35 33 34 273
TC Refusals 19 17 14 15 13 11 10 99

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 5
HC Transported 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 5
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

26%

11%

13%

9%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   2,726.40$   1,225.00$   925.00$       2,115.00$   4,280.00$   $29,669.90
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       75.00$         25.00$         25.00$         150.00$       $600.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       375.00$       425.00$       75.00$         275.00$       300.00$       $1,875.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             275.00$       275.00$       $675.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $3,176.40 $1,650.00 $1,025.00 $2,690.00 $5,005.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,839.90

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

90%

2%
6% 2%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 489 608 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2051
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 65 47 214
New Particpants 2 5 7
Center-Sponsored Events 100 212 255 567
Special Events 15 212 25 82 334
Caregiver's Support Group 5 4 4 13
Exercise Room 24 50 30 54 158
Dance Fitness 10 10
Yoga 32 20 10 32 94
Chair Exercise 90 114 54 54 312
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 35 30 141
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 18 20 95
Craft Room 40 36 30 106
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1394 1391 1466 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5469
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 402 502 1599
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 993 989 964 3870

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    147.00$   150.00$  -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  489.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     115.00$    90.00$     355.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     32.00$      60.00$     134.00$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

31%

18%
1%9%

0%
5%

17%

8%
0%

5%
6% 0%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 1051 898 988 1121 928 892 0 0 0 0 7550
Law Enforcement 655 640 820 683 780 880 703 705 5866

Animal Control 54 64 53 59 159 64 46 66 565
EMS 109 150 178 156 49 177 179 121 1119

Reported Incidents 85 38 48 42 48 55 58 35 409
Total Arrests 23 5 17 8 10 18 14 11 106

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 8 6 8 11 8 8 53
Felony Arrests 20 4 9 2 2 7 6 3 53

Total Papers Served 24 37 48 37 43 50 32 35 306
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 2 5 8 5 0 28

Civil Papers Served 24 31 46 35 38 42 27 35 278
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 3 15 3 14 12 15 103
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 0 2 1 1 1 8

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 3 13 2 13 12 14 95
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 18 26 15 16 15 125
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 38 0 91

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 21 8 20 15 46 35 197

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

78%

7%

15%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

YTD TOTALS

409

53 53
28

278

8

95

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      220,137.75$  319,977.93$  1,607,792.25$  
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        -$               -$               -$                   
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             371.79$         332.08$         1,544.52$          
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   178.95$         -$               6.05$                 
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        2,471.93$      3,646.45$      18,834.89$        
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              -$               -$               -$                   
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 1.12$             3.96$             18.42$               
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   2.13$             -$               -$                   
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        26,220.27$    34,340.45$    27,594.45$        
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               42.48$           100.26$         43.48$               
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          6,150.77$      6,105.60$      4,966.97$          
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             245.68$         284.16$         337.30$             
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 0.97$             0.49$             0.14$                 
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             242.68$         286.13$         406.99$             
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        1,167.95$      -$               -$                   
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          5,178.70$      2,225.01$      3,715.26$          

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     262,413.17$  367,302.52$  1,665,260.72$  -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  -$                                    

Initiated 10 10 32 16                   14
Amount 5,994.72$          7,438.51$          37,584.03$    9,785.57$      24,738.43$        
Satisfied/Cancelled 2 22 14                   11
Amount 3,289.05$          59,269.06$    11,176.11$    16,883.37$        

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        62,915.41 $73,379.97 293,009.88$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        52,698.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      857,577.61$                       
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            300.00$         -$               -$                   (575.00)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        52,998.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      2,032,702.61$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 8,171.27$          14,087.13$        21,150.43$    8,369.75$      57,646.56$        109,425.14$                       

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        53,136.28$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  53,136.28$                         

3,812,602.65$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  339,676.15$  497,317.64$  2,000,494.96$  -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  8,927,024.91$                    

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 44,001

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 7564 7256 6785 7921 46,320

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    64,656$    64,668$  64,716$  64,920$  452,519$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    33,800$    32,188$  33,943$  62,790$  312,637$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      1,820$      1,295$    840$        1,295$    10,605$          

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 16 3 7 12 70                    

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      1,820$      358$        722$        923$        10,830.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 12.3 11.9 12 12 13 88.900

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 2629 2629 2631 2639 18,403
New taps 4 1 2 0 0 1 8

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 55.46 53.63 64.74 35.17 426.93
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 142.79 19.73 0 0.22 224.49
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 1.42 0.29 0.95 0.87 4.42
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 79.63 32.02 114.66 39.82 538.71
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 3.72 2.08 1.20 10.86 30.56
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 33,912.55$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

35%

18%0%

44%

3%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)









DRAFT 

                       
 
 

February 7, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
February 7, 2022 at 6:00 PM in person and by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 
Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes and Carol V. 
Phelps, William R. “Bill” Sexton, Jr. and Julius Walker, Jr. were present in the room.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Walker gave the invocation 
and County Manager Potter lead the Pledge of Allegiance.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes for January 3 and 24, 2022 & Closed Session Minutes 

for December 6, 2021 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Emergency Management Mutual Aid Agreement 
d) Proclamation 2022-004 50th Anniversary of the Senior Nutrition Program 
e) Proclamation 2022-005 Black History Month 

    
Commissioner Sexton made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM: Mr. Jimmy Jones, Cardinal Lane, Roper talked about wanting to have 

Cardinal Lane paved.  He said he has brought papers for Chair Johnson so a meeting can be 
scheduled to talk about this.   

 
 RECESSED PUBLIC HEARING:  RE-WRITTEN LAND USE PLAN:  Chair Johnson called 
to order the recessed public hearing on the re-written Land Use Plan.   Commissioner Sexton asked 
Mr. Pittman did the whole plan change.  Mr. Pittman said the previous plan was 160 pages and now it is 
20 pages and that the majority of it did change, that’s why there was not a highlighted version that 
showed the changes.  Chair Johnson asked Mr. Potter if the Board needs to make a motion to replace the 
current Land Use Plan with the one presented here.  Mr. Potter said yes.  Commissioner Keyes said that 
she was familiar with the previous plan and can see what changes were made. 
 
 



DRAFT 

 Commissioner Keyes made the motion to close the recessed public hearing on the re-
written Land Use Plan.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the re-written Land Use Plan.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner 
Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Walker and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 DEPARTMENTAL PRESENTATION:  DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (DSS):  Mr. 
Clifton Hardison, DSS Director and Ms. Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy Director gave the following 
presentation to the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
  
  
 
 Commissioner Keyes commended the DSS staff for all the work they do.  Mr. Hardison said they 
are very dedicated staff.  Commissioner Phelps said after serving on the DSS Board, most folks don’t 
see what DSS does and how underappreciated the DSS.  Thank you, DSS, for what you do.   
 
 Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the requested reclassification in 
Permanency Planning.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT:   Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Office Administrator submitted the 
information below on the Unpaid 2020 Taxes that are Liens on Real Property to the Commissioner’s in 
their Agenda Package.  Ms. Wilkins was unable to attend the meeting tonight. Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the 
Board spoke on Ms. Wilkins’s behalf. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

Notes from Ms. Wilkins’ are as follows: 
 
“In accordance with NCGS 105-369(a) the following represents the total of unpaid 2021 

taxes that are liens on Real Property as of January 31, 2022 - $786,175.86.   
 

In accordance with NCGS 105-369 (b1) letters will be mailed the week of March 7th to 
notify the taxpayers of their delinquencies and that the delinquent taxes will be advertised in 
April.  

 
The letters will include the Debt Set-off information and the Notice of Lien Advertisement 

information (also referred to as the 2nd Notice letter).  The taxes have to be delinquent 60 days to 
send the Debt Set-off letter (the date of delinquency is January 6th) so the letters will be mailed in 
March. After we advertise the delinquent taxes in April, we can refer the 2021 delinquent 
amounts for foreclosure.   



DRAFT 

 
Our Delinquent Tax Coordinator/Deputy Tax Collector, Darlene Harrison, has already 

started wage garnishments and bank attachments on the delinquent amounts.  These enforced 
collections can begin on the date of delinquency.    
 

Taxpayers are contacting our office to set up monthly payments.  We are setting up 
payment agreements to have the taxes paid by June 2022.  If they default on their monthly 
payment we will enforce collections through the wage garnishment, bank attachment or 
foreclosure.”  
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to allow the Tax Administrator to advertise 
unpaid 2021 taxes that are liens on real property; pursuant to NCGS105-369(a). 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 APPROVAL OF BUDGET GUIDELINES: Mr. Potter spoke to the Board regarding the 
Budget Guidelines (shown below) for this budget year and will present them to the Department 
Heads Wednesday at the Department Head Meeting. 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the budget guidelines. 
Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Bennett noted the following requests for 
appointments/re-appointments 
 
Senior Center Advisory Council 
 
The Senior Center Advisory Council is recommending to appoint two new members (replacing 
two that were no longer qualified). The Council recommended Ms. Sharon McNair and Mrs. 
Jean Spruill. 
 
Both have agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
Planning Board 
 
The Planning Board is recommending to re-appoint Ms. Bunny Sanders and Ms. Mary Barnes. 
 
Both have agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
Trillium Advisory Board 
 
The Trillium Advisory Board is recommending appointing Ms. Miranda Keel, MTW Health 
Department, to replace Ms. Kirsten Beasley who is moving out of state and will no longer be 
able to serve on this Board. 
 
Ms. Keel has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the appointments/re-appointments as 
presented above.   Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner 
Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package. Commissioner Sexton said it looks like 
inflation is hitting us.  Ms. Dixon agreed with Commissioner Sexton.  Commissioner Sexton also 
asked if the County’s budget will be able to handle it.  Mr. Potter said yes, since the County does 
have a healthy fund balance. Chair Johnson asked about Detention and Ms. Dixon said their 
budget looks ok.  Ms. Dixon said she is going to look at again, but feels that it’s doing ok. A 
couple of small items were flagged but Mr. Potter and Ms. Dixon are looking into those…mostly 
reimbursement issues. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
  
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Sexton, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Walker and Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
  
 Ms. Bennett stated she will be attending (in person) the NC Association of County Clerks Annual 
Conference being held in Cabarrus County, March 15-18, 2022.   
 
  Chair Johnson said she will be attending the NACo Legislative Conference in Washington, DC 
later this month.  She also said she has been tasked with finding information on Uniform Guidelines 
dealing with the ARPA funding.  Chair Johnson said she also received a call from NACo to chair their 
Nominating Committee.  She has done that for 3 years. She will get to attend the Conference without using 
County funds and hopefully will come back with information that will help our County. 
 

At 7:00 PM with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Sexton made a motion 
to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Commissioner Sexton; yea; 
Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Walker and 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                 Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

             Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     March 7, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda March 7, 2022
	3-7-2022 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts
	Item 1c) BOCC Resolution 2022-006 Raising Uniform Guidance Micropurchase Threshholds from 20220307 to 20230307
	Item 1d) BOCC Resolution 2022-008 Modifying Personnel Policy re Holiday Pay for 20220303 mtg (002)
	3-7-2022 Item 2 (public forum)
	HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM AND/OR PUBLIC HEARING DURING
	COVID-19 AT THE MARCH 7, 2022 WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	3-7-2022 Item 3 Employee of the Quarter
	3-7-2022 Item 4 Public Hearing Sale of Veteran's Field
	3-7-2022 Item 5 Reso 2022-007 Sale of Veteran's Field
	Item 5) 1. Veterans_Field_Property GIS Aerial and Tax Info
	Item 5) 2. Property Tax Card 7778.18-41-2939_20220303 (1)
	Item 5) 3. Copy of PICS offer letter
	Item 5) 4. Advertisement in Feb 2, 2022 Beacon
	Item 5) 5. BOCC Resolution 2022-007 Authorizing Sale of Veteran's Field for 20220303 mtg
	Item 5) 5. RESO 2022-07 Sale of Veteran's Field for March 7, 2022 BoCC Mtg
	3-7-2022 Item 6 MC Chamber Presentation
	Item 6) Martin County Chamber of Commerce
	Item 6) COC-Membership-WashCo
	Item 6) WC ad
	3-7-2022 Item 7 WCS Discussion
	Item 7) WCSD Presentation 030122 PH 3
	3-7-2022 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Item 8) Feb 22 Budget Transfer-Amendments
	Item 8) 02-28 Finance Report
	3-7-2022 Item 9 Other Items
	Item 9) Reports for 3-7-22 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	Item 9) FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	Item 9) Register of Deeds Rollup Summary
	Item 1a) 2-7-2022 minutes
	3-7-2022 Item 10 Closed Session

